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RFP ADDENDUM #3 
Date of Addendum: 03/05/2024 

 

NOTICE TO ALL POTENTIAL RESPONDENTS 

The Request for Proposals (RFP) is modified as set forth in this Addendum. The original RFP 
Documents will remain in full force and effect, except as modified by this Addendum, which is 
hereby made part of the RFP. Respondent shall take this Addendum into consideration when 
preparing and submitting its Proposal.  

 

1. PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL DEADLINE 

The Amended Proposal submittal deadline remains the same and is not changed by this 
Addendum.  
 

2. QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS 

The following questions and answers are provided as a matter of information to clarify issues 
raised about the RFP. To the extent that changes to the RFP are required based on the 
questions received, the RFP has been modified as noted above in the RFP section of this 
Addendum.   

Item Questions and Answers 

3.1 Question: Please confirm the scope of water and fire suppression utility services.  Is the 
contractor to assume just extension of existing services to A, G and H floats, or are upgrades 
on the headwalk and supply lines anticipated?  Can you provide as-built information on the 
existing utilities? 
Answer: The Contractor is expected to tie into the existing services. Please find attached the 
as-builts as requested. 
 

3.2 Question: We request any information and pictures especially you might have on the old 
floats or debris pile you want removed that you may have? Also is there a clear path or right 
of way where we could bring in a ramp type barge to the nearest beach to haul them out of 
there via water? 
Answer: Beach access will be available starting September 2024. Pictures of the debris to be 
removed (“legacy floats”) are attached below. Additionally, there is a clear right-of-way after 
September 15th and before May 15th, weather permitting. 

 

3.3 Question: Please provide the quantity of legacy wood pilings that will be replaced with steel 
piling noted in section 1.1 B, page 6. Please provide a map denoting the locations of all legacy 
wood pilings to be replaced. 
Answer: Further information on legacy wood pilings, including a map of the locations, are 
attached below. There are a total of 153 wood piles and 24 steel piles. 

 

3.4 Question: Can you confirm the grants for this project don’t require the Buy American Act to 
be applicable for this project?  
Answer: This project does not have the Buy America Act requirements.   
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3.5 Question: Please confirm the vessel parameters to be used for design (vessel lengths, beam 
widths, weight, etc.) of the various slips and side tie moorage.  Are overlength vessels to be 
assumed for design of finger floats?  
Answer: Our current practice is 10% overall finger length. A Float does not have vessel 
parameters. A Float has one landing craft that is 85ft overall length permanently assigned.  A 
Float historically will moor large fishing vessels up to 60-85ft in length and often more 3-4 
abreast on the outside (west side) and 2-3 wide on the inside (east side) of the float.  G Float 
vessel parameters are 0' – 29' and H Float vessel parameters are also 0' - 29', so the stalls are 
currently 24' fingers. G and H floats are currently 21' apart with an assumed vessel width of 
10'. 
 

3.6 Question: Please confirm the snow load to be used for design of the floatation/freeboard. 
The specified 100psf snow load and requirement for DL+snow load freeboard to be at least 
6” will result in floats with high freeboard.  The snow load requirements are also significantly 
greater than the specified live load DL+live load freeboard requirements.  
Answer: With no snow load, the current floats are showing an 18" freeboard. Please match 
existing design. 
 

3.7 Question: Appendix D 4.1.1 Q: Will HDG Steel cleats or Aluminum cleats be allowed?  
Answer: HDG Steel Cleats are preferred 

 

3.8 Question: Appendix D 4.1.9 C: Existing concrete float chaseways consist of 5.5” x 16.5” clear 
space.  Will this same type be acceptable?  
Answer: Yes. 

 
3.9 Question: Appendix D 4.2.1 K: Existing concrete float system utilizes waler and through 

rods.  Will this same type be acceptable? 
Answer: Yes. 

 

3.10 Several questions were received regarding Appendix D, Section 4.2.2. This section has been 
stricken from the Request for Proposal documents. 
 

3.11 Question: Appendix D 4.2.3: Is FRP (fiber reinforced polymer) structural reinforcement 
acceptable?  Is epoxy coated bar accepted as a one-to-one replacement over galvanized rebar 
reinforcement?  
Answer: Yes. 

3.12 Question: Appendix D 4.2.4 A: Is an ISO 9001 Plant Certification acceptable in lieu of PCI 
Certification?  
Answer: Yes. 
 

3.13 Question: Appendix D 4.2.5: Existing concrete float system provides all cleats bolted through 
timber walers.  Is this acceptable? 
Answer: Yes. 
 

3.14 Question: Appendix D 4.2.9 K: Are galvanized through rods accepted?  Are FRP walers 
accepted? 
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Answer: Yes to both. We expect contractor to make these decisions based on cost. 
 

3.15 Question: Appendix D: Specification section 4.2.1 items C and K, and 4.2.9 items I, J, K appear 
to be in conflict.  Can you please clarify if a modular concrete system with a through rod and 
waler structural support system is permitted on this project? 
Answer: Yes. 
 

3.16 Question: Appendix D 3.5:  The RFP specification is for a 100 PSF snow load requires floats to 
be designed to a 26” freeboard level to accommodate a nearly 10-foot-deep snow event on 
the dock floatation system.  Existing concrete float systems on site have likely been designed 
at a 70 PSF snow load and 20” freeboard or a 60 PSF snow load and 18” freeboard.  Please 
clarify and confirm all freeboard levels for docks under DL, DL + LL, DL + SL,  DL + LL + SL.  
Answer: With no snow load, the current floats are showing an 18" freeboard. Please match 
existing design. 
 

3.17 Question: Appendix D: 4.1.6:  Subsection B states that creosote treatment is not allowed, 
unless approved by the Owner.  Will creosote treatment be allowed for glulam members 
located above water and not exposed to surface contact on trestles and floats?  Additionally, 
many treatment alternative allowed by AWPA are prohibited by regulatory agencies for 
over/near water applications.  Can you confirm the specific pressure treatments that will be 
permitted by regulatory agencies for this project? 

Answer: Yes. 
 

3.18 Question: Appendix D 4.1.3:  Will AWPA Marine Grade No. 1 Southern Pine be accepted as an 
equal? 
Answer: Yes. 
 

3.19 Question: RFP Sections 1.2.A references replacement of the float systems for A/G/H floats 
and Section 1.2.C states "Design and installation of the Utility Service upgrades, including 
power, lighting, water, and fire suppression to all applicable areas in the float system and 
related upland improvements."  Section 3.9 Utilities, second paragraph states "The electrical 
systems will include power to all slips on floats A and G, LED lighting, and all ancillary elements 
of the project."  Lastly, the Appendix D Part 4.6.4 table only shows pedestal receptacle 
requirements for A and G floats.   Please verify if power and lighting is required for H-float as 
well, and if so, please confirm receptacle requirements.  
Answer: H Float will not be powered. 
 

3.20 Question: Appendix D part 4.6.2 Service requires new 208/120V, 3-phase electrical service for 
the harbor located in the uplands near the top of the Gangway.  It is our understanding that 
the existing harbor service is 600A, 480V, 3-phase and feeds a distribution panel and 
substations on the dock that require 480V.  We believe the distribution panel and substations 
were installed in 2015 and the service equipment was modified at the same time to add in new 
feeders and an Automatic Transfer Switch.  Is a new 208/120V, 3-phase service truly required 
for this project, or can the existing 480V, 3-phase service and recently installed dock 
distribution panel be utilized to feed the electrical systems for floats A, G, and H, provided 
sufficient capacity exists within the equipment?  
Answer: Yes, existing will suffice. 
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3.21 Question: Appendix D part 4.6.4 requires pedestals "with a utility meter".  We don't believe 
the other pedestals on the remaining floats have utility (Chugach Electric Association) meters, 
only kWh meters integral to the pedestals.  Please confirm CEA meters are not required within 
the pedestals.  
Answer: CEA meter is not required.   
 

3.22 Question: Appendix D part 4.6.5 Lighting states to "provide luminaries atop select shore-tie 
pedestals on the floating docks as needed for the specified amount of illumination".  Is the 
desired intent to provide the pedestals with integral pedestal top lighting for all dock 
illumination, or are pole mounted LEDs spaced throughout the docks more desirable?  The 
photocell and hand-off-auto lighting controls requirement within Part 4.6.3.G eludes to the 
separate pole mounted LED lighting.  Please clarify the intent.  
Answer: Design-Builder to determine based on cost; either are acceptable.   
 

3.23 Question: Is the Owner/Obligee requiring a P&P Bond for six years after the performance 
period? (what is the length of the performance period? Second, when will the Owner/Obligee 
require the winning bidder to provide the performance and payment bonds? Answer: With 
respect to Article 5.1 A. Please change to read “These Bonds shall remain in effect for a 
minimum of one year after the date when the final payment becomes due, or when 
construction is complete, whichever is later, except as provided otherwise by Laws or 
Regulations.” The purpose of this change is to serve as a warranty bond to ensure completion 
of the project.  
  
The winning bidder shall provide the performance and payment bond prior to the start of 
construction.  
  
With respect to Bonds and Insurance, Article 5.1 C. Please strike this entire section. 
 

3.24 Question: In regards to the warranty, wouldn’t some of the large material items involved 
already come with longer term manufacturers warranties (so the warranty obligation 
essentially passes through the contractor)? 
Answer: We would rely on the manufacturer's warranties in those cases, yes. 
 

3.25 Question: As referenced in Appendix A 2.D., please provide all reports, tests, and drawings 
associated with the representation being made by submission of this proposal. 
Answer: Please see the attached "Whittier Small Boat Harbor Improvements – Phase I" for this 
data. 
 

 
 

END OF ADDENDUM 
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Item 3.2   Debris for Removal 
Legacy floats (B/C/D/E/F) and headwalk (Y/Z) = 2300 linear feet x 7/8ft wide 
 

Fingers  10ea x 48ft    480ft 
Fingers  15ea x 40ft    400ft 
Fingers  17ea x 33ft    560ft 
Fingers  30ea x 30ft    900ft 
Fingers  13ea x 28ft    365ft 
Fingers  26ea x 24ft    625ft 
Total      3330 lft x 2/3ft wide   
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C Float 

C Float – 24 Wood Piles 

D Float 

D Float – 26 Wood Piles 



 

 

 

  

 

 

  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Crossing Between C and D Floats  
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G Float H Float 
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between W and X 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Z Float 

Z Float – 9 Wood Piles 

One Additional Wood Pile at 

bottom of Gangway (furthest 

Left in above photo) 
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